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DESCENDANTS OF BAILEY CARTER-from Kathywellstexas.com/ BaileyCarter. html 

 Generation No. 1 

1.  BAILEY 5 CARTER (BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1)1 was born abt. August 1743 in Spotsylvania 

Co., VA, and died aft. 1820-1820 census Monroe Co., IN.  He married NANCY WIFE OF BAILEY  CARTER abt. 1764 

in Virginia.  She died aft. 1830 in Montgomery Co., VA. 

Notes for BAILEY CARTER: 

 PROOF & TIMELINE: 

 - - - - -We aren't sure how he lines up in the William Carter 1660 & wife Mary Goodloe line, but the descendant of 

 Bailey Carter b. 1743 DNA is a perfect match with the descendant of William Carter 1660 DNA. 

 - - - - -VIRGINIA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 lived first in Spotsylvania Co., VA then Buckingham Co., VA, then Henry 

 Co., VA by 1766.  His property became Franklin Co., VA in 1786.  Then he moved to, or his land became, 

 Montgomery Co., VA in 1798, where he died after February 1811.  His son John Carter b. abt 1769 remained 

 there and his property became Floyd Co., VA in 1831. 

 - - - - -1760 August to 1764 August:  Bailey Carter b. 1743, now age 17 years is apprenticed out to JOHN WALLER 

 JR. in Spotsylvania Co., VA for 4 years, probably until he reaches 21 years of age.  He's apprenticed as a 

 shoemaker, and taught to read and write.  This family shows a lot of importance in reading and writing.  I believe 

 his father may be John Carter,  secretary of the colony, or George who died in 1789 in Spotsylvania Co., VA or his 

 brother Joseph Carter  d. 1751 Spotsylvania Co., VA.   This is the only Carter family in that county at this time.  

 John Carter, secretary of the colony, was also a constable, and a vestryman for St. Georges Parish in Spotsylvania 

 Co., VA.   John Carter, secretary of the colony, worked side by side with John Waller Sr. and John Waller Jr.  

 "Apprentices of Virginia 1623-1800" by Harold Gill pg. 41 shows the apprenticeship dates, names, county, type of 

 apprentice.  I have a copy of the original. 

 - - - - -1762 Henry Co., VA:   Bailey Carter b. 1743 was a soldier in French & Indian War "Virginia  Magazine of 

 History & Biography" Vol 9, pg. 417:  Shows July 27, 1780 Bailey Carter made oath that he served as a soldier in 

 1762 in Henry Co., VA  in Col. Adam Stephen's Co.  He hadn't finished his apprenticeship, so he may have only 

 been about 19 yrs. old. 

 - - - - -1764 Buckingham Co., VA Tithes:  "General Records of Buckingham Co. VA" by Edythe Whitley pg. 5:  

 Bailey Carter b. 1743 1 tithe; Joseph Carter 1 tithe and 100 acres; George Carter 1 tithe (probably brothers). 

 - - - - -1765 May 31 Spotsylvania Co., VA Deed book F, pg. 560:  John Waller & wife Elizabeth sell 200 acres to John 

 Carter,  Gent., secretary of the colony.  Land that bounds John Carter's land, a Mr. Chew's land.  Larken Chew 

 testified to the sale.  The name John Waller comes up quite often with John Carter, secretary of the colony.  That 

 is why I suspect John Carter, secretary of the colony, is Bailey Carter b. 1743 father.  Also Bailey Carter b. 1743 

 named his son  b. 1769 John; many name a son after their father.   

 - - - - -1773 Buckingham Co., VA Tithes:  "General Records of Buckingham Co., VA" by Edythe Whitley pg. 28, 

 "Buckingham Co., VA Church & Marriage Records 1764-1822 by Mary Warren pg. 6, "Virginia's District Courts 

 1789-1809" by Mary Warren pg. 427:  George Carter 2 tithes; Joseph Carter 2 tithes; Stephen Carter 1 tithe. 
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 - - - - -1774 Buckingham Co., VA Tithes:  (Same references as above):  Bailey Carter b. 1743 included with Asop 

 Walker 3 tithes (could this be his brother- in- law/father- in- law?).  John Carter,  including Huddleston Carter, 2 

 tithes; George  Carter 1 tithe; Joseph Carter 1 tithe; Stephen Carter 1 tithe.  

 - - - - -1774 April 16 "The Virginia Genealogist" Vol 6, #1 pg. 62 British Mercantile Claims, Treaty of Peace of 1783 

 provided for the settlement of debts owed British merchants.  Bailey Carter b. 1743 judgement at Cumberland 

 Store issued, assets not found.  Several executions has previously been issued and returned no effects. 

 - - - - -1777 Oct 31 Henry Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 took Oath of Allegiance.  "Virginia Magazine of History & 

 Biography" Vol 9, pg.14 shows Bailey Carter b. 1743 took Oath of Allegiance on October 31, 1777 in Henry 

 County, VA.  

 - - - - -1778-1780 Taxes Henry Co., VA:  "1778-1780 Tax Lists of Henry Co., VA" by Lela Adams lists Bailey, 

 Baynes, Joseph, Josiah, George & David Carter. 

 - - - - -1780 July 27 "Virginia's Colonial Soldiers" by Lloyd Bockstruck pg. 254:  Lists Henry Co., VA Bounty Land 

 Applications.  Bailey Carter b. 1743 filed for bounty land because he served as a soldier in Col. Adam Stephen's 

 company in 1762 in French and Indian War.  

 - - - - -1782 January 18, Henry Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 received Land Office Treasure Warrant #12,338, land 

 on Otter Creek. 

 - - - - -1782 April 5 Henry Co., VA Deed:  From James Standefer to Bailey Carter b. 1743 400 acres on Otter Creek, 

 "Abstracts of Henry Co., VA Deed Books 1 & 2" by Lela Adams pg. 100. 

 - - - - -1782 August 22 "Virginia Magazine of History & Biography" Vol 1, pg. 835:  Shows an account in Henry 

 County, VA for Bailey Carter b. 1743.  Shows he gave oats & supplies, 2 1/2 oats at the price at that time, for the 

 Revolutionary War. 

 - - - - -1782 Henry Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 gets 400 acres Deed book 2, pg. 233. 

 - - - - -1783 April 24 Henry Co., VA Deed:  From Joseph Davis to Bailey Carter b. 1743 189 acres on Nicholas 

 Creek.   "Abstracts of Henry Co. VA Deed Books 1 & 2" by Lela Adams pg. 118. 

 - - - - -1783 August 28 Henry Co., VA Deed:  From Bailey Carter b. 1743 to Joseph Carter, both of Henry Co., VA, 

 100 acres on Little Otter/Outer Creek.  "Abstracts of Henry Co., VA Deed Books 1 & 2" by Lela Adams pg. 120.  

 (He sold this for only 15 pounds, so Joseph must be related, either brother or son.) 

 - - - - -1783 March 29 Henry Co., VA Deed:  From Bailey Carter b. 1743 to John Oakes, both of Henry Co., VA, 100 

 acres on Nicholas Creek.  Witnesses Joseph & John Carter (probable brothers).  "Abstracts of Henry Co., VA 

 Deed Books 1 & 2" by Lela Adams pg. 122. 

 - - - - -1783 Henry Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & son John Carter b. 1769 (both named in same 

 household) 2 male tithes total, 1 tithe over 21, 1 under 21, no slaves, 3 horse 5 cattle.  Joseph Carter nearby. 

 - - - - -1784 Henry Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & son John Carter b. 1769 (both named in same 

 household) 2 male tithes total, 1 over 21, 1 under 16; 2 horse, 6 cattle.  If John Carter is only 15 he would have 

 been born in 1769.  
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 - - - - -1785 Henry Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 Constable &1 tithe (means he is free from 1 tithe 

 for being Constable, 1 male tithe total, 1 under 21(son John Carter b. 1769).  (Keep in mind the John Carter I 

 believe is his father, secretary of the colony, was also a Constable, among other Civil offices.) 

 - - - - -1785 October 27:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 signed a petition to split Henry County, VA and form a new county 

 named Franklin Co., VA.  Rowland Salmons and Joel Walker also signed.  "The Virginia Genealogist" Vol 24, #2,  

 pg. 192. 

 - - - - -Did not find either Bailey Carter b. 1743 or son John Carter b. 1769 in Henry Co., VA Taxes from 1786 

 onward because their property became Franklin Co., VA now, and sure enough (see next). 

 - - - - -1786 Franklin Co., VA  Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 2 male tithes, 1 over 21, 1 between 16-  21 (son 

 John Carter b. 1769 still), 4 horses, 8 cattle. 

 - - - - -1786 April 7 Henry Co., VA (now Franklin Co., VA):  Bailey Carter b. 1743 received his land grant for 100 

 acres, adjoining his own land on Otter Creek Book W, pg. 586 "History of Patrick & Henry Counties VA"  by 

 Virginia Pedigo, pg. 329. 

 - - - - -1786 April Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 sworn Constable for Franklin Co., VA now "An Old 

 Virginia Court of Franklin County" by Marshal Wingfield pg. 14. 

 - - - - -1786 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 road overseer "An Old Virginia Court of Franklin County" by 

 Marshal Wingfield pg. 53. 

 - - - - -1786 "Franklin Co. VA 1786-1986, A Bicentennial History," Salmon and Salmon, Franklin Co., VA 

 Bicentennial Commission, Rocky Mt VA, 1993, pages 32-33:  In 1785 Robt. Woods, who became the 1st sheriff of 

 Franklin Co., VA in 1786, compiled "List of White People and Buildings in the Bounds of Capt. [Owen] Rubles 

 Company."  He recorded 78 households in present day SW Franklin Co., VA and NW Henry Co., VA.   Frontier 

 farmers did not rely only on produce and livestock for their livelihoods.  As Woods's list indicates, they practiced 

 trades as well.  Wm. Griffith, for example, made hats, while his next door neighbor, Owen Ruble, had both a 

 smith's shop and a turner's shop.  The next man on the list, BAILEY  CARTER b. 1743, owned a shop, for which 

 the purpose was not stated.  Perhaps the three farms, which were located on Turners Creek near the intersection 

 of present day Routes 748 and 752, formed a community of home industries that attracted purchasers from the 

 general neighborhood.  (I do not have a copy of this reference yet.) 

 - - - - -1787 January 12 Franklin Co., VA Deed Book 1, pg. 167-168:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 

 of Franklin Co., VA is on his own now and buys 100 acres on Otter Creek from Joseph Carter of Buckingham 

 Co., VA (not sure who he is, possible brother or son of Bailey(?)).  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & Nancy (unknown 

 maiden name) Carter witnessed the deed, along with Frankey Carter (Joseph wife (?) or Bailey Carter b. 1743's 

 daughter (?)). 

 - - - - -1787 June Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 is replaced by others as Constable and road overseer.  

 David Jones is appointed Surveyor of the Road in place of Bailey Carter b. 1743.  John Smith is appointed 

 Constable in place of Bailey Carter b. 1743.  "An Old Virginia Court of Franklin County" by Marshal Wingfield, 

 pg. 74. 

 - - - - -1787 Franklin Co., VA Personal Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 1 tithe, 3 horse, 16 cattle; next to him 

 is son John Carter b. 1769 1 tithe, 1 horse (Bailey Carter b. 1743 had 4 horses the year before, now son John 

 Carter b. 1769 is on his own and has 1 horse). 
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 - - - - -1788 March:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 assigned charge of Peter Miller orphan of John Miller "An Old Virginia 

 Court of Franklin County" by Marshal Wingfield, pg. 115.  

 - - - - -1788 Franklin Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 1 tithe; right next to him is son John Carter b. 1769 1 

 tithe. 

 - - - - -1788 March Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 in charge of Peter Miller orphan of John Miller. 

 - - - - -1789 -  1796 Franklin Co., VA:  Both Bailey Carter b. 1743 and son John Carter b. 1769 are listed, but 

 separately. 

 - - - - -1789 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's daughter Nancy Carter b. abt. 1769 married Wm. Stinnett  

 "Marriage Bonds of Franklin Co." by Wingfield pg. 218 states Nancy Carter (presume b. abt. 1769) daughter of 

 Bailey (presume Bailey  Carter b. 1743), surety John Carter (presume her brother John Carter b. 1769), date 1789. 

 - - - - -1791 May 1 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's daughter Jane Carter  is born. 

 - - - - -1793 January 21 Franklin Co., VA:   Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 along with Wm. Thorp 

 witnessed the inquisition of Wm. Keneday who was killed (the Cannaday's are next to Bailey Carter b. 1743 & son 

 John Carter b. 1769 on taxes in several counties) "Franklin Co., VA Wills 1786" by T.L.C. Genealogy pg. 27. 

 - - - - -1793 June 15 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743, son John Carter b. 1769 & other neighbors viewed 

 body of Mark Sheridan, who had cut his own throat.  "Franklin Co., VA Deed Book 2" by Barbara Crumpton pg. 

 70. 

 - - - - -1793 July 27 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 signed on inventory of Mark Sheridan's estate "Franklin 

 Co., VA Wills  1786" by T.L.C. Genealogy pg. 48. 

 - - - - -1794 January 21 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 is witness to William Thorps' Will.  He also is 

 included in credits to that estate "Franklin Co., VA Wills 1786" by T.L.C. Genealogy pages 30 & 65. 

 - - - - -1794 October 6 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 signed as witness to land laid off to Wm. Thorps 

 widow. 

 - - - - -1795 March 12 Franklin Co., VA:  I believe Frankey (Frances) b.1768 is also a daughter or sister of Bailey 

 Carter b. 1743 because she married in Franklin Co., VA to Rowland Salmons and named her son Bailey Carter 

 Salmons.  (She may be the witness along with Bailey Carter b. 1743 of deed in 1787 from Joseph to John Carter.) 

 - - - - -1795 November 19 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 married Fanny 

 McCutcheon. 

 - - - - -1796 February 25 Franklin Co., VA:  Phoebe Carter b. abt. 1776 (probable daughter of Bailey Carter b. 1743) 

 married Samuel McCutcheon.  "Marriage Bonds of Franklin Co." by Wingfield pg. 155 states Phoebe Carter b. 

 1776 m. Samuel McCutcheon, surety Bailey Carter b. 1743, date 1796.  This doesn't prove the relationship, but 

 Bailey Carter b. 1743's  son John Carter b. 1769 married Fanny McCutcheon in 1795 also. 

 - - - - -1797 August 22 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 son John Carter b. 1769 gets two Land Office 

 Treasury Warrants for land bounding Bailey Carter b. 1743.  Land Warrants #12,417 and #12,420. 

 - - - - -1797 Franklin Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 is only one listed and has no tithes; he must be 

 exempt.  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 moved to Montgomery Co., VA. 
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 - - - - -1797 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 is listed with 1 tithe, or 1 

 male over 21. 

 - - - - -1798 Franklin Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 is only one listed and has no tithes; he must be 

 exempt. 

 - - - - -1798 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 is listed with 1 tithe. 

 - - - - -1798, March 13 Franklin Co., VA:   Bailey Carter b. 1743 witnessed a deed from Wm. Oaks to Samuel Higgs. 

 - - - - -1798 March 21 Deed Book 3, pg. 577:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 of Montgomery Co., 

 VA sells 100 acres on Otter Creek to Bailey Carter (presume b. 1743) of Franklin Co., VA.  (This is where Bailey 

 Carter b. 1743 moves to Montgomery Co., VA.) 

 - - - - -1799 Franklin Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & son John Carter b. 1769 are both gone now. 

 - - - - -1799 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 listed and above him is son John Carter b. 1769. 

 - - - - -1800 Census:  None available. 

 - - - - -1800-1810 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Both Bailey Carter b. 1743 & son John Carter b. 1769 are listed 

 above each other. 

 - - - - -1801 October 31 Franklin Co., VA Deed book 4, pages 349, 350:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & wife Nancy 

 (unknown maiden name) Carter & son John Carter b. 1769 of Montgomery Co., VA sell 481 acres to Joel Walker 

 of Franklin Co., VA. 

 - - - - -1802 October Montgomery Co., VA Deed Bk C, pg. 559:  Joel Walker sells 230 acres in Montgomery Co., VA 

 to Bailey Carter b. 1743, witnessed by Samuel McCutcheon (his granddaughter Fanny McCutcheon married Bailey 

 Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769). 

 - - - - -1803 October 3 Franklin Co., VA Wills 1786-1812 pages 30, 48, 65:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 is a witness and/or 

 helps with inventory of estates. 

 - - - - -1804 May Montgomery Co., VA:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 & wife Fanny (McCutcheon) 

 Carter sell to Stephen Peters. 

 - - - - -1808 May 26 "Dr. Patrick Napier of Virginia"/Vava Knepp Book, or by Patrick Napier, pg. 66, on Napier 

 family states Jane (Carter) Napier (presume b. 1791) is daughter of Bailey (presume Bailey Carter b. 1743) & 

 Nancy (presume unknown maiden name) Carter of VA; also gives her birthdate and her marriage date and who 

 she married, Archibald Napier. 

 - - - - -1808 November 4 Transcription from copy of original minute books for the Primitive Baptist Old Charity 

 Church, also known as New Hope, on Smiths River in Patrick County, Virginia, spanning the years of 1798 thru 

 1842:  "Orderd that the proceeding of Pine Creek Church in the tryal of Short & Thomas & wife be enterd on our record & are as 

 follows -  First this church with helps from difrent churches proceeded to hear the dispute between Bro Rubin Short & Br Thomas & 

 wife. ? A  committey appointed to wit William Howard, Jesse Jones, Stephen Hubbord, Peter Howard, Henrey Tugel, Joel Anderson, 

 Umphrey Smith, Thomas Jones, Stephin Winfrey, Jasper Terry, Henrey Jones, Peter Y oung, Josiah Terry, BALEY  CARTER, 

 Benjamin Hubbord - A greed upon as follows We the committey are of the openion that Rubin Short is not guilty of the charge brought 
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 against him - and that Charls Thom and wife is guilty of Railery & unscripteral proceding against the said Short."  Thomas & 

 Wife ex cluded for the same.  Signed by order of the church. Lauson Graham Clk { A  true copy test - John Hall 

 - - - - -1809 April 8 Transcription from copy of original minute books for the Primitive Baptist Old Charity Church, 

 also known as New Hope, on Smiths River in Patrick County, Virginia, spanning the years of 1798 thru 1842:  

 "Agreable to an appointment made by Pine Creak Church and Smiths River Church we have met at the place appointed with helps 

 from several other churches - In order to settle a contridiction that ex ist between Rubin Short of Pinecreak Church &  Charls Thomas 

 Junr & wife of Smiths River Church & after prare being made we proceeded to buiseness as follows. B Jesse Jones chosen moderator 

 and after hearing the matter fuolly altegated on both sides their was a motion made for a committey to be chosen out of that bodey to 

 withdraw & settle the buiseness which was as follows Jesse Jones, Peter Howard, Stephin Hubbord, Luis Foster, Robert Jomnes, 

 Benjamin Hubbord, Thomas Jones, Peter Y ong, B Stepen Winfrey, John Hall, Umphrey Smith, BALEY  CARTER, James Cox , 

 Charls Simmons, Jasper Terrey, Gabriel Dehart - the virdit brought in, is as follows - we of the committey is of the oppinion that 

 Brother Short is gilty of the charges as to the contradiction brot against him by Brother Thomas & Wife.  A lso we of the 

 committey is of the oppinion that Brother Thomas & wife is gilty of not taken gospel steps with the said Short.  John Hall, Clk" 

 - - - - -1809 June Montgomery Co., VA Deed Book D, pg. 637:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 sold 80 acres to Francis Harter.  

 The property bordered the old State Line. 

 - - - - -1810 Montgomery Co., VA Census pg. 652:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 & wife Fanny 

 (McCutcheon) Carter now w/4 boys & 5 girls; Bailey Carter b. 1743 & wife Nancy (Unknown maiden name) 

 Carter w/1 boy 16-26 & 2 girls 16-26. 

 - - - - -1811 February Montgomery Co., VA Deed bk E, pg. 111 dated 29 October 1810:  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & 

 wife Nancy (unknown maiden name) Carter sell 175 acres to  Samuel Wilks.  Son of Bailey Carter b. 1743, John 

 Carter b. 1769, made Oath of Witness.  Land borders Howell's line (a couple of John's children married Howells). 

 - - - - -1811:  So Bailey Carter b. 1743 died or moved between February 1811 on deed above, and when taxes were 

 taken that year.  He is on taxes thru the year 1810 but not 1811.  (There is a Bailey Carter & wife over 45 years in 

 1820 Monroe Co., IN Census.  Could this be them?)    (Marla's note:  There is a Bailey Carter will of 1816 in SC., 

 as well as Land Grant in Illinois.) 

 - - - - -1811-1814 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 is now the only one. 

 - - - - -1815-1818 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 has 2 white male over 

 16 (John Carter b. 1769, and his son Bailey Carter b. 1797, who would be about 18). 

 - - - - -1819 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes: Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 only Carter there, but now 

 declares 3 white males over 16 (himself and his sons Bailey Carter b. 1797 & Henry Carter b. abt. 1802). 

 - - - - -1820-1823 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 with 2 males over 16, 

 and Bailey Carter b. 1797, his son, is on next page as 1 white male over 16 (Bailey Carter b. 1797 is now of age and 

 on his own). 

 - - - - -1822 March Montgomery Co., VA Deed:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter (presume father John Carter 

 b. 1769) to son Bailey Carter (presume son Bailey Carter b. 1797).  (John the father to the son Bailey?) 

 - - - - -1824 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769, Bailey Carter b. 1797, and 

 Henry Carter b. abt. 1802 all listed right below each other. 
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 - - - - -1825 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769 and son Henry Carter b. 

 abt. 1802 right above each other. 

 - - - - -1826 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 1769, Bailey Carter b. 1797, and 

 Henry Carter b. abt. 1802 all listed above each other, several below is also John Carter b. 1769's son Jesse Carter b. 

 abt. 1803. 

NOTES:  Transcribed from copy of original minute books for the Primitive Baptist Old Charity Church, also known as 

New Hope, on Smiths River in Patrick County, Virginia, spanning the years of 1798 thru 1842. 

 - - - - -Nancy Carter (daughter of Bailey Carter b. 1743) m. Wm. Stinnett 13 July 1789 in Franklin Co., VA. 

 - - - - -William P. Carter b. 1827 Barren Co., KY  married Lucetta Stinnett February 21, 1856 in Barren Co., KY .  I 

 wonder if they are related because Bailey Carter b. 1743's gr-grandson Henry Carter and David V. Carter went and 

 lived in Barren  Co. KY , and there was another Henry Carter family in Barren Co., KY  that were born in Virginia. 

 - - - - -Mary Jane Carter m. Tilghman Stinnett October 19, 1852 in Botetourt Co., VA.  Her father was a Joseph 

 Carter. 

 - - - - -Littleberry Carter m. Nancy Stinnett before 1848.  He died in 1870 in Bedford Co., VA. 

 Children of BAILEY  CARTER b. 1743 and NANCY (unknown maiden name) CARTER are: 

  2. i. Francis "Frankey"6 Carter (?) b. 1768, d. January 1860 Floyd Co., KY . 
  3. ii. John Carter b. abt. 1769 Buckingham Co., VA, d. bef. February 1837 Floyd Co., VA. 
  iii. Nancy Carter b. abt. 1769, m. William Stinnett July 13, 1789 Franklin Co., VA. 
 
 Notes for NANCY CARTER: 

    PROOF:  

    - - - - - "Marriage Bond of Franklin Co., VA" by Wingfield pg. 218 states Nancy Carter  

    daughter of Bailey (presume Bailey Carter b. 1743), surety John Carter (presume John 

    Carter b. 1769, son of Bailey Carter b. 1743). 

    - - - - - "Over the Mountain Men" by Anne Worrell states her mother is named Betsy (?). 

  iv.  Phoebe Carter b. abt. 1776, m. Samuel MCCutcheon February 25, 1796 Franklin Co., VA, b. 1772 VA, 

  d. aft. 1828 Williamson Co., TN. 

 Notes for PHOEBE CARTER: 

    PROOF:  

    - - - - - "Marriage Bonds of Franklin Co., VA" by Wingfield pg. 155:  Phoebe Carter m.  

    Samuel McCutcheon, surety Bailey Carter.  This doesn't prove the relationship, but John 

    Carter married Fanny McCutcheon also and I believe John is also a child of Bailey. 

  v. Jane Carter b. May 01, 1791 Franklin Co., VA,  d. August 14, 1851 Carroll Co., AR, m. Archibald  

  Hubbard Napier May 26, 1808 VA. 

 Notes for JANE CARTER: 
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    - - - - - "Dr. Patrick Napier of Virginia" Vava Knepp Book (or by Patrick Napier?) pg. 66 on 

    Napier  family:  States she is daughter of Bailey & Nancy Carter of VA; also gives her 

    birthdate and who she married. 

    - - - -They went to TN, MO, AR. 

  4. vi. Henry Carter (?) b. abt. 1765. 

Generation No. 2 

2.  FRANCIS 'FRANKEY '6 CARTER(?) (BAILEY 5 CARTER, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1) was 

born 1768, and died January 1860 in Floyd Co., KY .  She married (1st) MR. CRISP, (2nd) ROWLAND SALMONS March 

12, 1795 in Rocky Mount, Franklin Co., VA, son of JOHN SALMONS and ELEANOR.  He was born 1755, and died 

July 18, 1819. 

Notes for FRANCIS " FRANKEY"  CARTER (?): 

  - - - - - I believe she is the daughter of Bailey Carter b. 1743 because she named her son Bailey Carter  

  Salmons, and her birthdate would fit in perfectly, plus she was married in Franklin Co., VA along with 

  most of the siblings. 

  - - - - -1787 January 12 Franklin Co., VA Deed bk 1, pg. 167-168:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's son John Carter b. 

  1769 of Franklin Co., VA is on his own now and buys 100 acres on Otter Creek from Joseph Carter of 

  Buckingham Co., VA (not sure who he is, possible brother or son of Bailey?).  Bailey Carter b. 1743 & 

  wife Nancy (unknown maiden name) Carter witnessed the deed, along with Frankey Carter (Joseph wife (?) 

  or Bailey Carter b. 1743's daughter (?)). 

  - - - - -1830 Floyd County, Kentucky:  Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 listed as head of house with the 

  following people living in the house: 1 male between the age of 15 and 20, 1 male between the age of 20 

  and 30, 1 female between the age of 10 and 15, and 1 female between the age of 50 and 60.  

  - - - - -1840 Census Floyd County, Kentucky:  Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 listed as head of house with 

  1 female between the age of 80 and 90 living in the house.  

  - - - - -1850 Census Floyd County, Kentucky:  Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 VA is listed as age 82 in 

  home of Bailey Carter Salmons b. 1810.   

  - - - - -Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 death January 1860 Floyd County, Kentucky.  

  - - - - -Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 married Rowland Salmons b. circa 1759, d. 18 July 1819.   

Notes on ROLAND SALMONS:   

  - - - - -Rowland Salmons b. circa 1759 Cumberland County, Virginia, d. 18 July 1819 Floyd Co., Kentucky.  

  - - - - -Father is John Salmons, Sr. d. circa 1761. 

  - - - - -Mother is Eleanor McCarty . 

  - - - - - January 1777 Virginia took the Oath of Allegiance to the Colonies. 
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  - - - - -1782 Henry Co., VA, he was listed on tax records. 

  - - - - -Marriage 15 March 1795 Rocky Mount, Franklin Co., VA, Principal Frankie Carter. 

  - - - - -1810 Census Floyd County, Kentucky:  Listed as head of house with the following people living in 

  the house:  3 males under age 10, 1 male between the ages of 10 and 16, 1 male between the ages of 16 and 

  26, 1 male over age 45, 3 females under age 10, 1 female between the age of 10 and 16, and 1 female  

  between the age of 26 and 45.  

  - - - - -Wife #1:   Elizabeth (?), d. circa 1794.  

 Children of Roland Salmons & Elizabeth (?): 

   - - - - -Charity Salmons  
   - - - - -Susannah Salmons b. ca 1777  
   - - - - -William Salmons b. 12 December 1779, d. ca 1844  
   - - - - -Randolph Salmons b. August 1783, d. 19 November 1871  
   - - - - - Jonathan Salmons b. 28 April 1792, d. ca 1860  
   - - - - -Randall Salmons b. 1793, d. 1840  
   - - - - -Nancy Salmons b. 1794  
 
  - - - - -Wife  #2:  Bailey Carter b. 1743's daughter Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768, d. January 1860.  Married 

  15 March 1795 Rocky Mount, Franklin Co., VA.  

 Children of Roland Salmons and Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768: 

   - - - - -Anny Salmons b. 1795  
   - - - - -Rowland Salmons, Jr. b. 6 February 1799, d. August 1892  
   - - - - -Thomas Salmons b. 1802, d. 1880  
   - - - - -Naomi Salmons b. 1803  
   - - - - - Jane Salmons b. 29 April 1805, d. 16 April 1878  
   - - - - - (?) Salmons b. 1806  
   - - - - -Elizabeth Salmons b. 1807, d. ca 1861  
   - - - - -Bailey Carter Salmons b. 15 March 1810, d. 3 April 1874  
 
 Child of Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 and Mr. Crisp is: 
 
   - - - - - i. Son Crisp. 
 
 Child of Francis "Frankey" Carter b. 1768 and Rowland Salmons is: 

   - - - - - ii. Bailey Carter Salmons b. 1810. 

3.  JOHN6 CARTER (BAILEY 5, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1) was born abt. 1769 in 

Buckingham Co., VA, and died before February 1837 in Floyd Co., VA (Co. made out of Montgomery Co., VA).  He 

married FRANCIS "FANNY" MCCUTCHEON November 19, 1795 in Franklin or Augusta Co., VA, daughter of 

JAMES MCCUTCHEON and ELIZABETH JAMISON.  She was born 1770 in Patrick Co., VA, and died before 1860 in 

Floyd Co., VA. 

Notes for JOHN CARTER: 

 PROOF: 
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 - - - - - "Franklin County Virginia 1785-1905 Marriage Records" by Nicholas Murray pages 27, 98. 

 TIMELINE & CENSUSES: 

 - - - - -1783 Henry Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter & John Carter (both named in same household) 2 male 

 tithes total, 1 tithe over 21, 1 under 21, no slaves, 3 horses, 5 cattle.  Joseph Carter nearby. 

 - - - - -1784 Henry Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter & John Carter (both named in same household) 2 male 

 tithes total, 1 over 21, 1 under 16, 2 horses, 6 cattle.  (If John is only 15 he would have been born about 1769.) 

 - - - - -1785 Henry Co., VA  Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter, Constable & 1 tithe (means he is free from 1 tithe for 

 being constable, 1 male tithe total, 1 under 21(son John).  (Keep in mind the John Carter I believe is his father was 

 also a Constable among other Civil offices.) 

 - - - - -Did not find either Bailey or John in Henry Co., VA Taxes from 1786 onward because their property became 

 Franklin Co., VA now, and sure enough (see next). 

 - - - - -1786 Franklin Co., VA  Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter 2 male tithes, 1 over 21, 1 between 16-  21 (son John 

 still), 4  horses, 8 cattle. 

 - - - - - John Carter's birthdate was estimated from the 1784 taxes & tithes on him and his father Bailey. 

 - - - - -1787 January 12:  Franklin Co., VA Deed bk 1, pg. 167-168:  Bailey's son John Carter of Franklin Co., VA is 

 on his own now and buys 100 acres on Otter Creek from Joseph Carter of Buckingham Co., VA (not sure who 

 he is, possible brother or son of Bailey?).   Bailey & Nancy Carter witnessed the deed, along with Frankey Carter 

 (Joseph wife (?) or Bailey's daughter (?)). 

 - - - - -1787 Franklin Co., VA Personal Property Taxes:  Bailey Carter 1 tithe, 3 horses, 16 cattle.  Next to him is John 

 Carter, 1 tithe, 1 horse.  (Bailey had 4 horses the year before, now John is on his own and has 1 horse.) 

 - - - - -1788 March:  Bailey Carter assigned charge of Peter Miller orphan of John Miller "An Old Virginia Court of 

 Franklin County, VA" by Marshal Wingfield, pg. 115. 

 - - - - -1788 Franklin Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter 1 tithe.  Right next to him is John Carter 1 tithe. 

 - - - - -1788 March Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter in charge of Peter Miller orphan of John Miller. 

 - - - - -1789 -  1796 Franklin Co., VA:  Both Bailey Carter and John Carter are listed, but separately. 

 - - - - -1789 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey Carter's daughter Nancy married Wm. Stinnett.  "Marriage Bond of Franklin 

 Co., VA" by Wingfield pg. 218 states Nancy Carter daughter of Bailey, surety John Carter, date 1789. 

 - - - - -1793 January 21 Franklin Co., VA:  John Carter along with Wm. Thorp witnessed the inquisition of Wm. 

 Keneday who was killed (the Cannaday's are next to Bailey & John on taxes in several counties) "Franklin Co., VA 

 Wills 1786" by T.L.C. Genealogy pg. 27. 

 - - - - -1793 June 15 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey, son John & other neighbors viewed body of Mark Sheridan who had 

 cut his own throat "Franklin Co., VA, Deed Book 2" by Barbara Crumpton pg. 70. 

 - - - - -1793 July 27 Franklin Co., VA:  Bailey signed on inventory of Mark Sheridan's estate "Franklin Co., VA Wills 

 1786" by T.L.C. Genealogy pg. 48. 
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 - - - - -1795 November 19 Franklin Co., VA:  John Carter married Fanny McCutcheon. 

 - - - - -1797 August 22 Franklin Co., VA:  John Carter (son) gets two Land Office Treasury Warrants for land 

 bounding Bailey Carter.  Land Warrants #12,417 and #12,420. 

 - - - - -1797 Franklin Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey is only one listed and has no tithes; he must be exempt.  John 

 moved  to Montgomery Co., VA. 

 - - - - -1797 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter is listed with 1 tithe, or 1 male over 21. 

 - - - - -1798 Franklin Co., VA Property Taxes:  Bailey is only one listed and has no tithes; he must be exempt. 

 - - - - -1798 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter is listed as 1 tithe. 

 - - - - -1798 March 21 Deed bk 3, pg. 577:  John Carter of Montgomery Co., VA sells 100 acres on Otter Creek to 

 Bailey Carter of Franklin Co., VA (this is where Bailey moves to Montgomery Co., VA). 

 - - - - -1799 Franklin Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey & John are both gone now. 

 - - - - -1799 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Bailey Carter listed and above him is John Carter. 

 - - - - -1800 Census:  Not available. 

 - - - - -1800-1810 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  Both Bailey & John Carter are listed above each other. 

 - - - - -1801 October 31 Franklin Co., VA Deed Book 4, pages 349, 350:   Bailey/Nancy Carter & John Carter of 

 Montgomery Co., VA sell 481 acres to Joel Walker of Franklin Co., VA. 

 - - - - -1804 May Montgomery Co., VA:  John & Fanny Carter sell to Stephen Peters. 

 - - - - -1810 Montgomery Co., VA Census pg. 652:  John & wife now w/4 boys & 5 girls; Bailey & wife w/1 boy 16-

 26 years & 2 girls 16-26 years. 

 - - - - -1810 October 29 witnessed 1811 February Montgomery Co., VA Deed Book E, pg. 111:  Bailey & Nancy sell 

 175 acres to Samuel Wilks, son John Carter made Oath of Witness, land borders Howell's line (a couple of John's 

 children married Howells). 

 - - - - -1811-1814 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John is now the only one; Bailey is deceased. 

 - - - - -1815-1818 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter has 2 white males over 16 (John, and his son Bailey, who 

 would be about 18). 

 - - - - -1819 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John only Carter there, but now has 3 white males over 16 (himself and his 

 sons Bailey & Henry). 

 - - - - -1820 Montgomery Co., VA 45 years, 50-60. 

 - - - - -1820-1823 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter with 2 males over 16, and son Bailey Carter on next page 

 as 1 white male over 16 (Bailey is now of age and on his own). 

 - - - - -1822 March Montgomery Co., VA Deed:  John Carter to Bailey Carter (John the father to his son Bailey). 



12 
 

 - - - - -1824 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter, Bailey Carter, and Henry Carter all listed right below each 

 other. 

 - - - - -1825 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John and Henry Carter right above each other. 

 - - - - -1826-1828 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter, Bailey Carter and Henry Carter all listed above each 

 other, several below is Jesse Carter. 

 - - - - -1829 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John, Bailey, Henry, Jesse & Lewis, all listed in a row together. 

 - - - - -1830 Montgomery Co., VA Taxes:  John  Carter on pg. 59 is 60-70, wife 50-60, and probably his mother 

 Nancy 80-90 years old; pg. 060, sons Henry age 20-30, Lewis next to him age 20-30.  

 - - - - -1831 No Carters in Montgomery Co., VA, but I find all of them now in Floyd Co, VA.  This part of 

 Montgomery Co., VA became Floyd County, VA. 

 - - - - -1831 "Floyd Co., VA; A history of its People & Places" by Amos Wood pg. 301:  John Carter and Samuel 

 Agnew  are listed as largest landowners. 

 - - - - -1831 "Floyd Co., VA; A history of its People & Places" by Amos Wood pages 303, 304:  Shows John Carter 

 3737 acres on South Fork Little River, next to him is son Bailey Carter with 110 acres on South Fork Little River. 

 - - - - -1832 Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  John Carter  has 2 white tithes, and 4 horses. 

 - - - - -1833 Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  John is now John Sr., and below him is Henry, Jesse and John B. Carter.  John Sr. 

 has one tithe and 3 horses, John B. Carter is one tithe and 1 horse. 

 - - - - -1835 Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  All in a row are John Sr., Henry, Jesse, John B., and Bailey. 

 - - - - -1836 February Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  John Sr. now is exempt (because he is sickly). 

 - - - - -1837 February Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  John Sr. has died because now listed are Francis (Fanny) the mother 

 (she is exempt), and their children, Bailey, John B., Henry, and Jesse. 

 - - - - -1838-1843 Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  All 5, same as above listed in a row. 

 - - - - -1840 Floyd Co., VA Census:  Fannie by herself with no husband, 64 years old; her children are listed also. 

 - - - - -1850 Floyd Co., VA Census pg. 399:  Francis, female 74 years old, born in Patrick Co., VA.  Her son John B. 

 Carter right below her.  Henry on pg. 404. 

Miscellaneous notes for John Carter:  See next page. 

 - - - - John named his first born son Bailey after Bailey Carter b. 1743, father of John; many name first born sons 

 after their fathers.   

 - - - -Phoebe Carter married Fannie/Francis McCutcheon's brother, and I believe Phoebe is sister to John and her 

 marriage record says Bailey Carter is surety. 

 Children of JOHN CARTER and FRANCIS MCCUTCHEON are: 

  5. i. Bailey7 Carter b. November 04, 1797 VA, d. May 28, 1882 Round Prairie, Jefferson Co., IA. 
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  ii. Nancy Carter b. abt. 1800, m. David Howell May 25, 1820. 

  6. iii. Henry Carter b. abt. 1802 Montgomery Co., VA, d. bef. 1870 Floyd Co., VA. 

  iv. Jesse Carter b. abt. 1803, Floyd Co., VA, m. Ruth Adams August 26, 1830 Patrick Co., VA, b.  

  abt. 1806, Patrick Co., VA. 

  v. Lewis Carter b. bet. 1803-1810, m. Ann C. Bartlett January 06, 1829 Patrick Co., VA. 

Notes for LEWIS CARTER: 

   - - - - -1830 Montgomery Co., VA 20-30. 

  vi. Elizabeth Carter b. abt. 1806, m. William R. Agnew June 07, 1826 Floyd Co., VA. 

Notes for ELIZABETH CARTER: 

   - - - - -Book "Early Adventurer on the Western Waters" Vol 33 Mary Kegley pg. 165, "Henry Carter 

   married Agnew in 1826 (Eliz. Carter married an Agnew in 1827, most likely brothers and sisters). 

  vii.  Mary "Polly" Carter b. abt. 1811, m. Samuel Corn October 07, 1831 Floyd Co., VA, d. aft. 1870  

  Russell, VA. 

Notes for SAMUEL CORN: 

   PROOF: 

   - - - - -Floyd Co., VA Marriages pg. 53:  Corn, Samuel & Carter, Polly 1 Oct 1831 (FM); also Corn, 

   Samuel & Carter, Polly (d/o John Carter), 7 Oct 1831 (FB). 

  viii. Roseana Carter b. abt. 1812, m. David MCClanihan September 24, 1832 Floyd Co., VA. 

  7. ix. John B. Carter b. abt. 1813 Floyd Co., VA. 

  x. Fannie Carter b. abt. 1818, m. Andrew F. Howell October 08, 1838 Floyd Co., VA. 

Notes for FANNIE CARTER: 

   - - - - -According to the 1850 Iowa Census, she is living with her brother Bailey and his wife Nancy 

   and says she is 66, which would make her b. 1784 (?). 

4. HENRY 6 CARTER (?) (BAILEY 5 CARTER, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1)1 was born abt. 

17651 Virginia. 

Notes for HENRY CARTER (?):  

  - - - - - I don't know that this Henry belongs here!  This is a theory I am working on, so I have him  

  listed here as a  possibility. 

  - - - - -According to census, Henry Carter was born in VA.  

  - - - - -Could this be the Henry Carter who filed a pension in 1832 in Barren County, KY? 
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  - - - - -Children of Henry Carter (?) are: 

   8. i. Henry7 Carter. 
   ii. Joseph J. Carter (?)1 b. abt. 1808 VA1, m. Juliette Luckett b. Barren Co., KY 1.   
   
Notes for JOSEPH J. CARTER: 

   [Other Carters. FTW] 

   - - - - - Joseph J. Carter b. ca 1808 VA, evidently came through Kentucky.  I am  wondering if he was 

   part of  the Barren Co., KY  Carter migration.  His wife Juliet Luckett was from Barren Co, KY .  

   - - - - -Henry Carter and Samuel Luckett both filed for Revolutionary War pensions in Barren  

   County, KY .  Perhaps Henry and Joseph are related? 

   - - - - - Joseph J. and Juliet were in Cass Co., MO in 1860 and Kansas City, MO in 1880. 

   - - - - -Elise Markham, moved on to Missouri in 1860 & 1870 

Possibly: 

 1)Bailey Carter b. 1743. 
 2)Henry Carter b. 1765. 
 3)Henry Carter b. abt. 1817, m. Mariah Mathews. 
 4)Thomas Jefferson Carter b. 1847 Barren Co., KY , d. 1931 Fannin Co., TX (same confederate veteran camp as 
 David  V. Carter). 
 4)Henry Carter b. 1849, d. 1924 Fannin Co., TX (buried in same cemetery as David V. Carter). 
 4)James A. Carter. 
 3)Joseph J. Carter m. Juliette Luckett b. Barren Co., KY .  
 2)John Carter m. Francis "Fanny" McCutcheon. 
 3)Henry Carter m. Melinda Agnew. 
 4)David V. Carter lived in Barren Co., KY , d. 1900 Fannin Co., TX . 
 4)Henry Carter d.1892 Barren Co., KY . 
 

Generation No. 3 

5.  BAILEY 7 CARTER (JOHN6, BA ILEY 5, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1) was born November 

04, 1797 in VA, and died May 28, 1882 in Round Prairie, Jefferson Co., IA.  He married NANCY G. BARTLETT April 

30, 1831 in Floyd Co., VA, daughter of THOMAS BARTLETT and FRANCIS CLARK.  She was born 1814 and died 

1892. 

Notes for BAILEY CARTER: 

 - - - - -Children's names & information received by Ray Hellstrom.  

 - - - - -1850 Jefferson Co., Iowa, Round Prairie pg. 12:  Bailey 51, Nancy 36, 8 children, and Frances Howell, 66 

 years old (this must be his sister, but I believe her age is off). 

 - - - - -1852 Jefferson Co., Round Prairie, Iowa State Census pg. 6. 

 - - - - -1856 State Census of Iowa, Jefferson Co., Round Prairie Twp.: 
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  1318 14 101 103 Bailey Carter 57 M X 6 Virginia Farmer  

  1318 15 101 103 Nancy Carter 42 F X 6 Virginia none 

  1318 16 101 103 Taswell Carter 16 M 6 Virginia Farmer 

  1318 17 101 103 Ellen Carter 14 F 6 Virginia 

  1318 18 101 103 Jackson Carter 12 M 6 Virginia 

  1318 19 101 103 Fleming Carter 10 M 6 Virginia 

  1318 20 101 103 Ballard Carter 6 M 6 Virginia 

  1318 21 101 103 Elkany Carter 3 M 3 Iowa 

  1318 22 101 103 Amanda J. Carter 0 F 0 Iowa 

  1318 23 102 104 Thomas B. Carter 24 M X 6 Virginia Farmer 1318 24 102 104 Rachael J. Carter 21 F X 18 

  Ohio  none 

  1318 25 102 104 Anderson G. Carter 0 M 0 Iowa 

(Marla's note:  Also a Bailey Carter in Illinois for Land Grant) 

 - - - - - -1860 Round Prairie, Jefferson Co., Iowa pg. 160:  Bailey 62 years. 

 - - - - - -1880 Round Prairie, Jefferson Co., IA Enumeration, District 86, pg. 356:  Bailey Carter 81 years old, born in 

 VA abt. 1799.  Head of household Ballard Carter (?). 

 Children of BAILEY  CARTER b. 1797 VA and NANCY (BARTLETT) CARTER are: 

  i. Thomas Reeves8 Carter, b. 1832. 
  ii. John Floyd Carter b. 1834. 
  iii. George A. Carter b. 1836. 
  iv. Frances A. Carter b. 1837. 
  v. Taswell H. Carter b. 1840. 
  vi. Cynthia Ellen Carter b. 1842. 
  vii. William Jackson Carter b. 1844. 
  viii. Fleming T. Carter b. 1845. 
  ix. Ballard C. Carter b. 1849. 
  x. Ekland J. Carter b. 1852. 
  xi. Amanda J. Carter b. 1855. 
 
6.  HENRY 7 CARTER (JOHN6, BA ILEY 5, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1) was born abt. 1802 in 

Montgomery Co., VA, and died bef. 1870 in Floyd Co., VA.  He married MALINDA AGNEW August 22, 1826 in Floyd 

Co., VA, daughter of SAMUEL AGNEW and SUSANNA PRESTON.  She was born 1808 in Bedford Co., VA, and died 

1875 in Floyd Co., VA. 

Notes for HENRY CARTER: 

 PROOF: 
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 - - - -  Book "Floyd County, VA; A history of its People and Places" by Dr. Amos Wood pg. 34, "Marriages in the 

 New River Valley, VA. Montgomery, Floyd, Pulaski & Giles Counties" by Therese Fisher pg. 41. 

 - - - - -Book "Early Adventurer on the Western Waters" Vol 33, Mary Kegley pg. 165:  Henry Carter married 

 Malinda Agnew in 1826 (Eliz. Carter married an Agnew in 1827, most likely brothers and sisters). 

 - - - - -1830 Montgomery Co., VA Census pg. 060:  Henry is 20-30, his brother Lewis next to him is 20-30, his father 

 John on pg. 59 is 60-70, wife 50-60, and probably John's mother Nancy 80-90 years old. 

 - - - - -1835 Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  All in a row are John Sr., Henry, Jesse, John B., and Bailey. 

 - - - - -1836 February Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  John Sr. (Henry Carter's father) now is exempt (because he is sickly). 

 - - - - -1837 February Floyd Co., VA Taxes:  John Sr. has died because now listed are Francis (Fanny), the mother, 

 (she is exempt), and their children Bailey, John B., Henry, and Jesse all in a row. 

 - - - - -1850 Floyd Co., VA Census:  Lists Henry Carter, wife, and children, including David who is 4.  Note the 

 Kennedy's and Epperly's are next to him.  They are next to his father John in earlier years, and John's father Bailey 

 in even earlier  years. 

 - - - - -1860 Floyd Co., VA Census:  Henry Carter is 57 years old.  Lists his wife and children, including David V. 

 Carter 13 years old. 

 - - - - -1870 Census:  Can't find either of them.  Did they die before 1870? 

 Children of HENRY CARTER b. abt. 1802 and MALINDA (AGNEW) CARTER are: 

  i. Lewis8 Carter b. 1826. 
  ii. Susan Carter b. 1829, d. Missouri, m. Calvin Simmons. 
  iii. John Carter b. 1830. 
 
Notes for JOHN CARTER: 

   - - - - - John & Samuel moved to California. 

  iv. Samuel Carter b. 1831. 

Notes for SAMUEL CARTER: 

   - - - - - John & Samuel moved to California. 

  v. Madison Carter b. 1833, Ruth Adams January 14, 1857 Floyd Co., VA. 

Notes for MADISON CARTER: 

    - - - - -1870 Jacksonville, Floyd Co., VA Census. 

    - - - - -Died at Pulaski, VA. 

  vi.  Isaac N. Carter b. 1835, d. 1862 in prison, m. Elizabeth Howell. 

Notes for ISAAC N. CARTER:   
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    - - - - - Isaac was wounded in the battle of Williamsburg in the Civil War and died of his  

    wounds in prison. 

  vii.  Ann Eliza Carter b. 1836, d. Salem, VA, m. John Gardner. 

Notes for JOHN GARDNER: 

    - - - - -Wounded at Williamsburg and died. Wife Ann Eliza Carter died Salem, VA. 

  viii. Henry Calhoun/Calvin Carter b. March 28, 1837, Floyd Co., VA, d. September 29, 1892,  

  Barren Co., KY , m. Julia Hollingsworth b. October 01, 1842 KY , d. May 06, 1928, Barren Co., KY . 

Notes for HENRY CALHOUN/ CALVIN CARTER: 

    PROOF: 

    - - - - - - "Barren County, KY , Cemetery Records" by Brice Leech/Kenneth Beard pg. 350 

    shows they are buried in the Mayfield- Jones Cemetery in field on farm owned by Ray 

    Billingsley Hiseville, Barren Co., KY ., also called Morrison Campground.  Page 35 states 

    her father is Tom Hollingsworth. 

  ix.  Jacob T. Carter b. 1839. 

Notes for JACOB T. CARTER: 

    - - - - -Book says Jacob T. Carter and David V. Carter moved to Texas, but David went to 

    GA and KY  first. 

    - - - - -1870 Indian Valley, Floyd Co., VA (?). 

  x. Harvey D. Carter b. 1842, d. Bluefield, WV,  m. Nannie Howell. 

Notes for HARVEY D. CARTER: 

    - - - -Book says Harvey D. Carter wounded at Chickamauga September 19, 1863.  Corporal. 

    - - - -1870 Census Indian Valley, Floyd Co., VA. 

    - - -  Harvey D. Carter died at Bluefield, WV. 

  xi. James E. Carter  b. 1844, d. 1861 Manassas, VA. 

Notes for JAMES E. CARTER:    

    - - - - - James E. Carter was in the army and died of fever at Manassas, VA. 

  xii.  Latha Jane Carter  b. 1846, d. Marion, VA. 

Notes for LATHA JANE CARTER:   

    - - - - -Latha Jane Carter is also listed on the 1870 Jacksonville, Floyd Co., VA Census. 
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  xiii.  David V. Carter b. August 10, 1846 Floyd Co., VA, d. March 05, 1900, buried Carson Cemetery, 

  Ector, Fannin Co., TX , m. Anne E. Twyman January 12, 1869, b. October 01, 1846 Barren Co., KY , d. 

  December 13, 1927 Altus, Jackson Co., OK. 

Notes for DAVID V. CARTER: 

   PROOF: 

   - - - - -1850 Floyd Co., VA Census:  Lists David V. Carter's parents Henry Carter b. 1802, wife  

   Malinda (Agnew) Carter  and children, including David V. Carter who is 4 years old.  Note the 

   Kennedy's/Cannadys and Epperlys/Apperlys are next to him.  They are next to Henry's father 

   John in earlier years, and John's father Bailey in even earlier years. 

   - - - - -1860 Floyd Co., VA Census:  Henry Carter b. 1802 is 57 years old.  Lists his wife, Malinda 

   (Agnew) Carter and children, including David V. Carter 13 years old. 

   - - - - -Civil War Muster Rolls:  Listed as D.V. Carter, of Floyd Co., VA.  He was in Georgia, signed 

   up with Texas Battalion:  Good's-Douglas's Texas Battery Artillery.  Most distinguished of all TX 

   artillery commands and only Texas battery to serve east of Mississippi River.  Assigned late 1863 

   to Artillery Battalion of Maj. Alfred R. Courtney, Army of TN. 

   - - - -1870 Floyd Co., VA Census:  Can't find either of David V. Carter's parents (Henry Carter b. 

   abt. 1802 & Malinda (Agnew) Carter.  Did they die before 1870? 

   - - - -1870 Barren Co., KY  Census:   David V. Carter is newly married to Anne E. Twyman. 

   - - - -1878 December 18 Deeds Barren Co., KY :  David V. Carter bought land from Samuel  

   Demeese. 

   - - - -1880 Barren Co., KY  Census:  David V. Carter & wife Anne E. (Twyman) Carter with two 

   sons. 

   - - - -1880 December 24 Deed in Barren Co., KY :   David V. Carter & Anne E. (Twyman) Carter, his 

   wife, sell to Henry C. Carter b. 1837, his brother, (this is about when David V. Carter left KY  to 

   move to Texas). 

   - - - - -1887 January 15 Hitson, Fisher County, TX :  David V. Carter is listed as a postmaster. 

   - - - - -1891 Mitchel Co., TX:  According to personal notes written by Thos. Best, son of John P. 

   Best, regarding David V. Carter "in 1891 'Old Man Carter' was working in Mitchel County, and 

   this is when his son Emmitt met my sister, Irene Best.  The reason the Best family was there was 

   Malinda Best had moved out there after her husband died."  

   - - - - -Short Biography from Fannin County Historical Society.  David V. Carter personally gave 

   information about being born in Floyd Co., VA, his Civil War service, and where he joined up with 

   Douglas's Artillery, and when he moved to Texas. 

   - - - -  Buried:   David V. Carter is in Carson Cemetery 3 miles north of Ector on 898 in Fannin Co., 

   TX near Sherman, TX.  (If you come in on 82, turn right (or south) on 898, the cemetery is  

   actually just barely south of 82 ( it is the first dirt road on the right on 898).  Pull into fence  
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   opening north of the rock opening.  His grave and his wife's parents, the Twymans, are to the right 

   about 2nd row, Section 2, Row 21, Lot 6b).  David Carter's stone says, "In my father's house, are 

   many mansions, David V. Carter born August 10, 1846, died March 5, 1900.  A loving  

   husband, a father dear, a faithful friend, lies buried here."   Gr-Gr-Grandson David Wells and 

   David's son Brent Wells placed a black Confederate Iron Cross at his grave.  

   - - - - -OBITUARY -  David V. Carter, Found in 9 March 1900 issue Fannin Co., Texas "Bonham 

   News" as follows:  Monday last at his home at the county farm, superintendent D. (David) V . CARTER died 

   after an illness of a week.  His death was caused by an ulceration of the bowels.  His suffering was most intense but 

   he bore it bravely. On Tuesday his body was laid to rest in the Carson Cemetery two and a half miles north of 

   E ctor. The deceased was born in Floyd Co., V A  in August 1847.  He served in the Confederate A rmy, and at the 

   close of the war he went from V irginia to Kentucky, where in 1878 he was married to Miss Annie E . Twyman.  In 

   1881, they came to Texas, and have made their home in this county since.  His widow and 2 sons, Emmet and 

   Lorenzo, survive him.  For something more than 4 years Mr. Carter had been superintendent of the county farm and 

   had served the county most acceptably in that capacity.  No one had ever managed the farm any better than he and it 

   is not probable that a better man for the place can be found.  Mr. Carter was a good man & good citizen, a good 

   neighbor.  For 30 years he had led a Christian life, having confessed Christ and united with the Christian church in 

   Kentucky.  He expressed himself as being ready and willing to go to receive his reward for the deeds done in the body.  

   The influence of his good life will live on while his body molders into dust. 

   - - - -  OBITUARY -  Another obituary for David V. Carter reads, "Death of Mr. D.V . Carter.  Mr. 

   D.V . Carter, superintendent of the county farm died Monday.  This is a sad announcement.  Mr. Carter was one of 

   our best citizens.  He had won the confidence of the public to a wonderful degree by his ex ecutive ability in the 

   management of the county farm.  He fully met the demands devolving upon him toward the unfortunate inmates of 

   the poor house, managed the county convicts with wisdom and carefully controlled the finances of the institution.  The 

   remains were interred at Carson's Graveyard a few miles north of E ctor, Tuesday afternoon at 3 o'clock. 

   - - - - -OBITUARY – Anne E. (Twyman) Carter obituary reads, "December 13, 1927.  Mrs. Annie E . 

   Carter died at the home of her son, J.R. Carter, 608 N. Spurgeon, A ltus, OK Tuesday morning at 6:30 o'clock.  

   Funeral services and burial were conducted Wednesday afternoon, December 14, Rev. J.A . A gnew officiating (Was 

   this man related to David's mother Malinda Agnew?).  Mrs. Carter was born in Barron Co., Kentucky January 

   10, 1846 and was married to D.V . Carter December 1, 1869.  To this union was born two sons, Emmet, the 

   eldest, died in 1902 and the mother made her home with her son here, J.R. Carter, since the death of her husband 

   who died March 5, 1900.  Mrs. Carter joined the Christian church early in life, was a conscientious Christian and 

   was beloved by a host of friends. She leaves her son and daughter-in-law, five grandchildren and a brother, G.W. 

   Twyman, and a host of friends to mourn her loss. 

More Notes for DAVID V. CARTER & ANNIE E. (TWYMAN) CARTER: 

  - - - - -Anne E. (Twyman) Carter was a Member of the Church of Christ. 

  - - - - -David V. Carter was a superintendent of county farm and managed county convicts.  

  - - - -Anne E. (Twyman) Carter died in son J. Renzo Carter's  house 608 N. Spurgeon, Altus, OK. 

 xiv.  Leah Adeline Carter, b. 1848, d. Floyd Co., VA, m. Col. Perrydine Tillman "Tip" Howell. 

 xv.  Verda Carter b. 1860. 
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 7.  JOHN B.7 CARTER (JOHN6, BA ILEY 5, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, WILLIAM1) was born abt. 1813 in 

Floyd Co., VA.  He married ROZINAH ADAMS February 21, 1832 in Patrick Co., VA.  She was born abt. 1813. 

Notes for JOHN B. CARTER: 

  - - - - - "Patrick Co., VA Marriages 1791-1850" says, "John B. Carter, son of John Carter of Floyd Co., VA, 

  and married Rozinah Adams.  Minister Joshua Adams.  Surety Rowland Adams.  Consent is given by 

  Joshua Adams, guardian for Rozinah Adams.  Witness Lewis Spencer M.R. 21, Feb. 1832."  Is her father 

  deceased? 

  - - - - -1870 Carrol Co., VA Census. 

 Children of JOHN CARTER and ROZINAH ADAMS are: 

  i.  Mary8 Carter b. 1833, m. Jacob Boyd. 
  ii. William A. Carter b. 1835. 
  iii. Francis R. Carter b. 1837. 
  iv. Jessee Carter b. 1839. 
  v.  Joseph M. Carter b. 1841. 
  vi. John Carter b. 1841. 
  vii. Thomas Carter b. 1843. 
  viii. Frazier Carter b. 1845. 
  ix. Flemming Carte b. 1845. 
  x. Elizabeth Carter b. 1848. 
 
 8.  HENRY 7 CARTER (HENRY 6 CARTER?, BAILEY 5 CARTER, BENJAMIN4, GEORGE 3, WILLIAM2, 

WILLIAM1)1.  He married MARIAH MATHEWS1 18371.  

Notes for HENRY CARTER: 

 - - - - - I am not positive about this portion of the line!  This is part of information given to me by other researchers. 

Possibly they line up like this: 

 1)Bailey Carter b. 1743.  
 2)Henry Carter b. 1765. 
 3)Henry P. Carter b. abt. 1817, m. 1837 to Mariah Mathews. 
 4)Thomas Jefferson Carter b. 1847 Barren Co., KY , m. Susan Catherine Durham, d. 1931 Bonham, Fannin Co., 
 TX (was in same confederate veteran camp as David V. Carter below). 
 4)Henry Carter b. 1849 d. 1924 Fannin Co., TX (buried in same cemetery as David V. Carter below) 
 4)James A. Carter d. 1928, m. Annie Key Durham. 
 3)Joseph J. Carter, m. Juliette Luckett b. Barren Co., KY .  
 2)John Carter, m. Francis "Fanny" McCutcheon. 
 3)Henry Carter, m. Melinda Agnew. 
 4)David V. Carter lived in Barren Co., KY , d. 1900 Fannin Co., TX . 
 4)Henry Carter d.1892 Barren Co., KY . 
 
 Children of HENRY CARTER and MARIAH MATHEWS are: 

  i.  James A.8 Carter d. January 27, 19281, m. Annie Key Durham January 04, 18661, b.   

  September 26,  18401, d. October 19191. 
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Notes for JAMES A. CARTER: 

Possibly they line up like this:  (Information from Mrs. Ray Taylor) 

 1)Bailey Carter b. 1743.  
 2)Henry Carter b. 1765. 
 3)Henry P. Carter b. abt. 1817, m. 1837 to Mariah Mathews. 
 4)Thomas Jefferson Carter b.1847 Barren Co., KY  m. Susan Catherine Durham, d. 1931 Bonham,   
 Fannin Co., TX (was in same confederate veteran camp as David V. Carter below). 
 4)Henry Carter b.1849, d.1924 Fannin Co., TX (buried in same cemetery as David V. Carter    
 below). 
 4)James A. Carter d. 1928, m. Annie Key Durham. 
 3)Joseph J. Carter, m. Juliette Luckett b. Barren Co., KY .  
 2)John Carter, m. Francis "Fanny" McCutcheon. 
 3)Henry Carter, m. Melinda Agnew. 
 4)David V. Carter lived in Barren Co., KY  d. 1900 Fannin Co., TX . 
 4)Henry Carter d.1892 Barren Co., KY . 
 
  ii.  Thomas Jefferson Carter b. April 22, 1847 Barren Co., KY 1, d. November 24, 1931 Bonham, Fannin 

  Co., TX 1, m. Susan Catherine Durham October 26, 1876 b. October 18, 18491, d. January 09, 18781. 

Notes for THOMAS JEFFERSON CARTER: 

   - - - - -Thomas Jefferson Carter moved to Fannin Co., TX.   Book "Civil War Veterans" by Fannin 

   County Museum of History pg. 16.  He stated he was born in Barren County, KY .  He ran away 

   from home at 14 years old to join the Confederate Army at Scottsville, KY  in 1862 Co. C, 2nd KY   

   Regt. Cavalry under General John Morgan.  Captured at Corrigan Indiana, sent to Camp Moton, 

   Div. 6 prisoners.  Got out at end of war.  He moved to Bonham, TX about 1900.  Was in Sul Ross 

   Camp #164 of United Confederate Veteran Camp.  

   - - - - - I have a copy of Thomas Jefferson Carter's pension file #23096, Fannin Co., TX. 

   - - - - -Some of the information came from Mrs. Ray Taylor, granddaughter of Thomas Jefferson 

   Carter, (903)583-3659.  

   - - - - - I believe this family is related to Bailey Carter and to John & Francis "Fannie" (McCutcheon) 

   Carter in Floyd Co., VA. because a couple of John's & Fannie's children moved to Barren Co., KY  

   also, and one son, David V. Carter, died in Fannin Co., TX and was in the same Sul Ross  

   Confederate veteran camp. 

   - - - - -Thomas Jefferson Carter is buried in the Willow Wild Cemetery-Bonham, TX .  

Possibly they line up like this: 

 1)Bailey Carter b. 1743.  
 2)Henry Carter b. 1765. 
 3)Henry P. Carter b. abt. 1817 m. 1837 to Mariah Mathews. 
 4)Thomas Jefferson Carter b. 1847 Barren Co., KY , m. Susan Catherine Durham, d. 1931 Bonham, Fannin Co., 
 TX (was in same confederate veteran camp as David V. Carter below). 
 4)Henry Carter b. 1849, d. 1924 Fannin Co., TX,  buried in same cemetery as David V. Carter below. 
 4)James A. Carter d. 1928, m. Annie Key Durham. 
 3)Joseph J. Carter, m. Juliette Luckett b. Barren Co., KY .  
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 2)John Carter, m. Francis "Fanny" McCutcheon. 
 3)Henry Carter, m. Melinda Agnew. 
 4)David V. Carter lived in Barren Co., KY  d. 1900 Fannin Co., TX . 
 4)Henry Carter d.1892 Barren Co., KY . 
 
 iii.  Henry Carter1, b. 18491, d. 1924, buried Carson Cemetery-Ector, Fannin Co., TX 1, m. Rachel (wife of Henry 
Carter)1, b. 18501, d. 1929, buried Carson Cemetery-Ector, Fannin Co., TX 1. 
 
Notes for HENRY CARTER: 

  - - - - - I think this might be another son of the Henry Carter & Mariah Mathews (I suspect is grandson of 

  Bailey) in Barren County, KY .  This Henry was born in 1849, which fits in by date.  He died and is buried 

  in the same cemetery as David V. Carter, who is gr-grandson of Bailey.  SEE BELOW: 

Possibly they line up like this: (Some of this information came from Mrs. Ray Taylor.) 

 1)Bailey Carter b. 1743.  
 2)Henry Carter b. 1765. 
 3)Henry P. Carter b. abt. 1817, m. 1837 to Mariah Mathews. 
 4)Thomas Jefferson Carter b.1847 Barren Co., KY ,  m. Susan Catherine Durham, d. 1931 Bonham, Fannin Co., 
 TX (was in same confederate veteran camp as David V. Carter below). 
 4)Henry Carter b. 1849, d.1924 Fannin Co., TX, buried in same cemetery as David V. Carter below. 
 4)James A. Carter d. 1928, m. Annie Key Durham. 
 3)Joseph J. Carter, m. Juliette Luckett b. Barren Co., KY .  
 2)John Carter m. Francis "Fanny" McCutcheon. 
 3)Henry Carter m. Melinda Agnew. 
 4)David V. Carter lived in Barren Co., KY , d. 1900 Fannin Co., TX . 
 4)Henry Carter d. 1892 Barren Co., KY . 
  

1 David V. Carter b. August 10, 1846 in Floyd Co., VA, d. March 05, 1900 in Carson Cemetery, Ector, Fannin Co., 

TX.  

.. + Anne E. Twyman b. October 01, 1846 in Barren Co., KY, d. December 13, 1927 in Altus, Jackson Co., OK, m, 

January 12, 1869, father is William F. Twyman, mother is Eliza Willis Twyman. 

....... 2 Emmett A. Carter b. September 18, 1870 in Slick Rock, Barren Co., KY, d. July 11, 1902, buried Knight-

Glendale Cemetery, Lufkin, Angelina Co., TX.  

........... + Irene Victoria Best b. September 29, 1875 in Jasper, TX, d. July 31, 1930 in Cameron, Milam Co., TX, m. 

Abt. 1895, father is John Pinkney Best, mother Malinda Hester Lewis. 

................. 3 David Earl Carter b. November 10, 1895 in Bonham, Fannin Co., TX, d. July 10, 1961 in Houston, 

Harris Co., TX.  

..................... + Zella Parker b. July 05, 1895 in Liberty Co., TX, d. November 16, 1919 in Grayburg, Hardin Co., 

TX, m. May 11, 1916, father is Hardy Andrew Parker IV, mother is Mary Zella Doucet. 

........................... 4 Earline Montaz Carter b. in Grayburg, Hardin Co., TX, buried Bluebonnet Cemetery, 

Bedford, Tarrant Co., TX.  

............................... + Robert Sloan Wells b. in McAlister, Pittsburg Co., OK, d.  in Athens, TX, m. 1942 in 

Houston, Harris Co., TX. 

..................................... 5 David Rolfe Wells b. in Houston, TX, m. Kathy Gayle Heaton. 
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INTRODUCTION TO THE SIMPSON GENEALOGY  Is this our Bailey Carter in the Simpson Genealogy? 

The following web document is a facsimile of "The Simpson Genealogy", by Rev. Z. L. Holmes, as found on file in the 

Laurens County, SC Library.  There are no hypertext links, so use your browser's "find" or "search" function, or scroll and 

read through the document.  This is a historical document, revised in the late 1800s by Richard Wright Simpson, copied 

by W. W. Simpson in 1898, and revised by Eugene S. Hudgens in 1958.  It is referenced under "Sources Cited" in the 

recent book "Far, Far from Home" by Guy R. Everson and Edward W. Simpson, Jr.  

- - - - - -THE SIMPSON GENEALOGY of two distinct families of Simpsons who married and emigrated from County 

Antrim, Ireland, and settled in Laurens County, South Carolina, between 1770 and 1790.  

 - - - - -3 brothers of one family: William Simpson, b. 1729 P.1; Alexander Simpson, b. 1731 pg. 41; John Simpson b. 

 1733 pg. 43. 

 - - - - -4 sisters of another family:  Mary Simpson b. 1730 pg. 1; Margaret Simpson b. 1733 pg. 44; Elizabeth Simpson 

b. 1740 pg. 45; Nancy Simpson b. 1748 pg. 45.  

Originally compiled by Rev. Z. L. Holmes, from information obtained from old and reliable sources (1815 -  1885) and  
Revised and brought down to present time by Richard Wright Simpson October 7, 1897.  (Copied by W. W. Simpson, 
June 1898).  Revised and brought to present time, June 15, 1958, by Eugene S. Hudgens. 
 
Page 33 as follows:  "Richard Franklin Simpson, the seventh and youngest child of Col. John and Mary (Wells) Simpson, was born March 

25th, 1798; married Dec. 27th, 1836, Mary Margaret Taliaferro, third daughter of Zacariah and Margaret Chew (Caster) Taliaferro, both 

born and married in V irginia; and died Oct. 28th, 1862. Maj. Richard F. Simpson graduated at the South Carolina College, at the age of 18 

years, studied law under Job. Johnson, at Newberry, and settled and practiced law at Laurens Court House, S.C. A fter a few years practice, he 

abandoned the law and engaged in merchandising and cotton manufacturing, his factory being located at Burnt Factory, on Raburns Creek, 

Laurens County. He served several times in the Legislature, both in the House and Senate. While Senator from Laurens County, he met at 

Columbia Miss Margaret Taliaferro, who was visiting the State Capitol with Dr. Broyles, her brother-in-law, who was a member from 

Anderson County. Shortly after this he volunteered with the Laurens County Company to go to the Seminole War, in Florida. He was elected 

Captain of the Company, but was appointed Major of the South Carolina Regiment, and carried his Battalion (cavalry) to Florida. Lieut. Col. 

Butler commanded the other Battalion. A fter the war was over, upon his return to the State, he was offered the position of Governor, but Col. 

Butler asked him to let him have the position which he, in his unselfish nature, consented to do, and Butler was elected Governor. He visited 

Miss Taliaferro at her home, at Pendleton, S.C., and married her Dec. 27th, 1836.He then resigned the position of Senator from Laurens and 

moved to Pendleton, and ever after resided upon old Taliaferro homestead, which his wife inherited. In 1843 he was nominated by the members 

of the Legislature from his Congressional District, as their candidate for Congress, and was elected, and by repeated elections served until 1849, 

when he was thrown from his buggy and nearly killed. During his last term in Congress he had to walk upon crutches. This injury decided him 

to quit public life, and he was succeeded by Col. James L. Orr. During."  

Page 34 as follows:  "His career in Congress.  He was a warm friend and supporter of John C. Calhoun, who also resided at or near 

Pendleton. He was in favor of secession, and was elected to the Secession Convention, and voted to take the State out of the Union. Maj. 

Simpson was an earnest and devoted Christian, a member of the Methodist E piscopal Church South. He was perhaps the most popular man in 

the Simpson family, and his numerous namesakes in this book abundantly show. But his popularity was not confined alone to his family; it 

ex tended to the rich and the poor all over the State and out of the State, wherever known. His generosity and unselfishness were proverbial. His 

relations, old and young, delighted to visit him and loved him for his generous and wholesoul hospitality. His great aim in life was to make 

others happy. He was the peace maker of this section, and many a duel he has avoided; frequently sent for from fifty to six ty miles, and so great 

was the confidence had for his high sense of right and honor, he seldom if ever failed to bring about a friendly adjustment of the difficulty. He 

lived honored, loved and respected, and died at a good old age.   It is a common remark that if any man ever went to Heaven, Maj. Simpson is 

that man."  
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Mary Margaret (Taliaferro) Simpson was the third daughter of Zachariah Taliaferro, who was a soldier in the 

Revolutionary War.  After the war, he studied law and removed from Carolina County, VA to Columbia, SC.  After some 

years, he returned to Virginia and married Margaret (Chew) Carter, a daughter of John Carter and his wife Hannah (Chew) 

Carter, who had the following children:  

 - - - - -Mary Carter, who married Maj. Stephens.  
 - - - - -Lucy Carter, who married Benton Taliaferro.  
 - - - - - Judith Carter, married Joseph Sutton.  
 - - - - -Robert Carter, who never married.  
 - - - - -Bailey Carter, who never married.  (Marla's note:  Could this be the Bailey Carter in either 1816 Will of SC or 
 Land Grant of Illinois?) 
 
Margaret (Chew) Carter, who married Zachariah Taliaferro.   After his marriage, Mr. Taliaferro settled near old 

Pickensville, SC, then the Court House for Washington District, and practiced Law.   After the Washington District was 

divided into Pendleton and Greenville Districts, he settled at his old homestead three miles from Pendleton, and 

continued the practice of law and farming.  He was a man of fine judgment, and accumulated a large fortune, which he 

divided among his four daughters;  Sarah Ann T., who married Dr. O. R. Broyles; Lucy Hannah, who married Col. David 

S. Taylor; Mary Margaret, who married Maj. Richard F. Simpson; and Caroline Virginia, who married Dr. H. C. Miller.  

These four families were among the most prominent families of the upper part of the state of SC.   Richard Franklin 

Simpson and Mary Margaret (Taliaferro) Simpson had the following children:  

 - - - - - John Simpson b. 1837, died in infancy.  
 - - - - -Taliaferro Simpson pg. 34. 
 
Notes for TALIAFERRO SIMPSON: 

 - - - - -The second child of Richard F. and Mary Margaret (Taliaferro) Simpson was born January 26, 1839.  He 

 graduated at Wofford College, Spartanburg, SC.  Just before graduating, he being Captain of the College 

 Company, he offered its services to the Governor, but the latter declined because he did not wish the 

 College to be broken up.  (Continued in book at URL below.) 

 http://www.geocities.com/BourbonStreet/4492/simpson.htm 

 - - - - -Richard Wright Simpson pg. 35.  

 - - - - -Mary Margaret Simpson pg. 37.  

 - - - - -Anna Tallulah Simpson pg. 39. 

 - - - - - John Garlington Simpson b. April 12, 1846, d. November 26 1858. 


